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Our Mission

The Society believes that everyone has the right to live with dignity at every turn of life, even towards the end
of it. We envision a world in which all people can pursue a quality hospice and palliative care and receive
bereavement support that enable them to live a full and positive life when facing death, and die with dignity
and peace.

Influencing Beliefs and Attitudes

° Heighten community and professional awareness on issues surrounding death, dying and bereavement;
° Facilitate open discussion on death and dying while respecting cultural, religious and family beliefs.

Meeting Community Needs

° Provide readily available information about facing death and end-of-life care options;
° Offer comprehensive bereavement support to patients, family & carers enabling them to cope with
issues of loss and grief.

Enhancing Understanding & Skills

o Increase understanding through the ongoing discussion of end-of-life care among health care providers;
° Strengthen health care professional development through the provision of specialized training and
support;

° Encourage and support in end-of-life care research.

Advocating for the Best Possible Care

° Collaborate with caregivers from different disciplines to enhance their practices on the care of the dying
and the bereaved;

° Help people who are dying and their families to recognize that the choice to receive quality end-of-life
care is their right;

° Work towards greater recognition in end-of-life care and greater access to the best possible end-of-life
care for all.
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Our Milestones
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The Society for the Promotion of Hospice Care (“the Society”) is a non-profit making organization registered in
Hong Kong. For 34 years, the Society has been dedicated to providing and developing high-quality hospice and
palliative care for patients with life-limiting illness. When the Society was newly established, its office was a 70
square-foot workstation located in Ruttonjee Sanatorium (now Ruttonjee Hospital). Thanks to generous
donations from The Keswick Foundation and years of persistence, the Society became a pioneer in the
promotion of hospice and palliative care in Hong Kong.

EEGNRAFIERRBEINT
The Society for the Promotion of
Hospice Care was established.

BEIZEBREEETEIINE
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The first home nursing program for
people with life-limiting illness was
launched.

BRERAARAEERARKENEEEENBYERFLIAE BAEREEFLRXHERERR

B

BESHLIRAE IR
The Bradbury Hospice, the first in Hong Kong to provide specialized The Society transferred the
hospice care for terminally-ill cancer patients, was established. operation of The Bradbury Hospice

to the Hospital Authority.
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The Jessie and Thomas Tam Centre, the first bereavement counseling,  The first Hong Kong Palliative Care Symposium The 3G Quiality Retirement Program was initiated.

education and resource centre in Hong Kong, was established. was organized.
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The Jockey Club Home for Hospice, the first family-oriented
hospice in Hong Kong, was officially opened.
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Chairman’s Message
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For 34 years, the Society for the Promotion of

Hospice Care (SPHC) has been guided by the

mission to promote and develop hospice and

palliative care so that more terminally ill patients

can receive quality care at the end-of-life. In doing
S0, we hope patients can find comfort and dignity as
they complete their life journey.

SPHC is subvented by neither the Social Welfare
Department nor the Community Chest of Hong Kong. In fact,
we rely heavily on public donations to support our operations and

services. In 2019/20 FY, SPHC, like many local NGOs, faced

unprecedented challenges brought by social unrest, Covid-19, and the ensuing economic recession. The
pandemic has forced us to shelve or cancel our fundraising activities, significantly reducing our donation
revenue.

In spite of the ongoing challenges, SPHC will overcome any adversity with perseverance and determination.
Even with our limited resources, we will continue to uphold our high standard of care because we believe
“everyone has the right to live with dignity at every turn of life, even towards the end of it”.
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This year, SPHC launched the “1000 Hospice Family Subsidy Program”, a fundraising campaign with an initial
target of HK$4 million to help underprivileged patients and their families gain access to quality palliative care.
SPHC is immensely grateful to Chinachem Group for making the first donation of HK$200,000 and becoming
a pioneer sponsor of the Program.

I would like to thank our loyal supporters who have helped sustain SPHC’s service development, allowing our
patients to enjoy the very best hospice and palliative care. | must also thank our staff for their passion and
dedication, especially during such difficult times.

Looking forward, SPHC aims to strengthen its status as one of the leading organizations for the promotion of
hospice care by raising community awareness on fundamental end-of-life issues. Furthermore, fundraising will
be an ongoing focus to finance our operations, support subsidies for underprivileged patients and maintain
overall care excellence.

Your generous sponsorship is essential to our continued growth and development, now more than ever.
Please join us in “Embracing Love Until The Last Second”.

%%

Chairman of the Executive Committee

Dr. Hubert Chan Chung Yee, JP
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Chief Operation Officer’'s Message
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The past year has been full of challenges for the Society for the Promotion of Hospice Care (SPHC) and for
the citizens of Hong Kong.

I would like to thank the Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust Fund for supporting the construction of the
Jockey Club Home for Hospice (JCHH) and sponsoring The Jockey Club In-patient Hospice Care Subsidy
Program for the past three years to help underprivileged patients receive exceptional hospice care. Despite
the end of the sponsorship in November 2019, SPHC will maintain the In-patient Hospice Care Subsidy
Program at its own expense from December 2019 onward to continue helping those in need.

When | accepted the role of Chief Operation Officer in December 2019, | did not anticipate that in less than
two months, COVID-19 would reach Hong Kong, causing widespread social panic. To prevent and control the
spread of the virus, the Government adopted strict social distancing measures. People began to work from
home, schools closed and public activities came to a halt. For SPHC, that meant our public fundraising
activities and seminars, such as Hike for Hospice and the Hong Kong Palliative Care Symposium, had to be
postponed or cancelled. At the peak of the outbreak, it felt as though time had stopped in Hong Kong.

In spite of operational pressure exacerbated by the pandemic, SPHC has adopted the spirit of “Embracing
Love until the Last Second” and has continued to provide high-quality hospice and palliative services to
patients and their families. To avoid crowded hospitals, many terminally ill patients have chosen JCHH for its
privacy and comfort. The increasing public demand for JCHH services is affirmation and recognition of my
colleagues’ hard work and dedication.
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We are grateful to our donors, sponsors, partner organizations and volunteers who have stood with us during
these challenging times. When our fundraising activities were suspended, their support was the impetus we
needed to face adversity, reminding us that we should not only maintain the quality of our service, but also
improve on it. At the same time, none of this would be possible without my colleague’s tireless perseverance
in providing professional services to patients and their families, and their passionate commitment to promoting
hospice care in Hong Kong. As a non-governmental organization without Government funding, the road
ahead will be difficult. However, | have no doubt SPHC will rise to the challenge while upholding its principles
and service quality.

Though life is finite, love is infinite. Thank you for your encouragement and support.

Chief Operation Officer
Chan Muk Kwong
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Resident Doctor’s Message

FYH2019BRBEHAET  RMEFZEEA K B
REDERDEMBIERZ NMESRABATRAEARRRSMA
Bi  RFPEEBRLABAEIBEFSEEEZRINBAREKRBRK
EEREXRR SBRERERE -
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BARBALEBBRSAIS BREBABRE—A A
ABARBOS EARESMEARBSIRERRRINEERR
F-RABMENBN URBRANKBES  RANEERER
BRURES - DREME BIE R YGHIE - LR B RBIRD -

EESALEBNBRBMADEEEZERRKEHET  TRALERR
KiZ2e B - A BMAZREBALTERHIBKI14K - B R EHD
ERBACDEREEER  KBRICKINELE  FEERERARE
—EHEREREBRAKT —BEMR Bt RMARFEEBRES
%E’J'IEEJ@EE{I"“ CFEIMEENXBRAECEERBIESS

Z%Jﬁf}\ B—E FASEMATMEEERH BEKXBE
FFJ%E'J BRI TELNESS -

When COVID-19 first appeared at the beginning of
the year, we rushed to stock up on anti-epidemic
supplies, not unlike many others in Hong Kong. As
the number of confirmed COVID-19 cases grew,
we became increasingly concerned that one of our
new patients or family visitors would cause an \"
outbreak at the Jockey Club Home for Hospice. ~

\
In the face of insufficient resources during a pandemic, v
we immediately implemented a set of preventative measures
that required all patients to pass a COVID-19 test, limited the
number of visitors to one person, and made surgical masks,
temperature checks, and health declarations mandatory upon entering JCHH. Thanks to the efforts of our
colleagues and the cooperation of our patients and their families, we have been able to maintain normal
service operations, admit new cases and allow family visits even during the peak of the outbreak.

We believe every terminally ill patient should be able to complete their life’s journey with their family members
at their side. However, to prevent the further spread of COVID-19, the Government imposed a compulsory
14-day quarantine period for all inbound travelers in February. This has prevented many overseas family
members from seeing their dying loved ones for the last time. We have since appealed to the Department of
Health to exercise flexibility and allow families returning from abroad to see their loved ones at JCHH provided
special arrangements, such as the use of separate passageways by visiting family members and immediate
post-visit disinfection of facilities, are observed.
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The pandemic may have prevented families from reuniting but it has also engendered acts of love. Earlier this
year, we received a call for help from a gentleman. His wife, who was in her fifties, had terminal liver cancer
and was admitted to a public hospital. In a moment of confusion, the hospital staff placed her in restraints just
as it was announced that visiting arrangements would be suspended at public hospitals. The heartache was
too much for the husband to bear so he decided to take his wife home. Upon learning about the situation, our
clinical team immediately conducted home visits to assess the patient, and provide symptom control and
carer training. A few days later, the husband informed us his wife had passed away. “As my wife laid in my
arms, | whispered in her ear and felt her breathing slow. She left peacefully not long after,” he told me. When |
visited the patient to certify her death, her entire family was gathered by her bedside. Even though there was
sadness, everyone also felt comforted by one another.

We always encourage families to actively participate in the care of their loved ones, and show them love and
gratitude. The love of family members is perhaps the greatest blessing for end-of-life patients.

o

Resident Doctor of Jockey Club Home Hospice

Dr. Jack Leung
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Service of the Jockey Club Home for Hospice
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At the Jockey Club Home for Hospice (JCHH), we are committed to providing holistic and quality hospice and
palliative care service to patients living with life-limiting illness. In the past year, our multi-disciplinary care team
of medical and nursing professionals, social workers and psychologists successfully provided physical,
psychological, social and spiritual support to numerous end-of-life patients. By relieving them of pain and
suffering, they were able to enjoy the company of their loved ones and spend their last days with dignity and

ETAEREBIRE quality of life.
R 8 F— & Palliative Care — Service Figures at a Glance
@\ R 3% & # 8 % 818 No. of Enquires
= |
D #7 {8 22 372 No. of new case
.. B
% 2 Diagnosis ='==\S)
B HAfEE  Advanced Cancer 84% R1L1E&R B  Degenerative liness 5%
% Frail Elderly 9% KHEIZEE =38 End Stage Organ Failure 2%
¥
C%@ AR 75 %6 Bl
Service Options
‘ ’ * e
GBI RERE A B R
In-patient Service Home Care Day Service M

% A Patients 262 served 548 R K J& & 55 No. of home visit 112 AR
REMKE  Family Members 6554 served 1,429 )R & 5 #& #No. of phone contact No. of users counted

v 0

{£Bt EE Reason for Admission E] =

P H 1t B % \ }
kSl & Symptom Control & 96.2% '

i 4% AR R Terminal Care
E AR Respite and Carer Training 3.8%

K BRI & IR

* 2019/20%F E£1F Figures of 2019/20 Fiscal Year

Other Service

= {5 5 B Grief Counselling

A

1,079 A JX No. of users counted
& 7% Therapy
1,240 A JX No. of users counted
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BEFEEE Hospice and Palliative Care

ERFSSECR(TH: AREHNTEEERBEELR XERE BHEERE 25
JCHH provides palliative in-patient care, home care, and day service.

{XBE PR In-patient Service

HFRHUOMREBEENBIES HRAERKAREE © 2019205 F - H I X 2627R E IR
BAR RSB ERBEGRIZES HREREII6.2% - ElREUNRERBERARE

JCHH has 30 spacious ensuite rooms with amenities for family members and carers to stay overnight
with their loved one. In the 2019/20 FY, JCHH served 262 in-patients with life-limiting conditions,
mainly from elderly and cancer populations. 96.2% of in-patient admissions required symptom
control and terminal care.

XER#E HomeCare

ERAREAFRESRPHFEEENERBRALRBEREAMKR RMALBRANIEFEEL
BREIORANERCE  REZENBMRTE  BESEHR BEEIE FFTEAACNRBBE
BWIREER - 2019/20F F  REREE K L EITEA8 N KD R1,429 8 2 RIEEEZE o

Our home care service is ideal for patients who are in the early stages of the disease process or have
yet to discontinue curative treatments. Each of our home care patients is assigned a case manager who
is an experienced palliative care nurse and also their main contact point to the rest of their healthcare
team. Regular visits are arranged to provide comprehensive assessments, drug counselling, carer
support and individualized care planning. In the 2019/20 FY, we completed a total of 548 home visits
and 1,429 around-the-clock phone support episodes.

HRE AR Day Service

ERERAERBERN —AEEHH BARERAMAES THAESEE% Y R
PEIARBADE FESERE U RSB EHES - 2019205 & - B
BERFMDBRBARBI2A -

Our day service is an important part of our hospice care model, effectively bridging home care and in-
patient services through doctor consultations, pain management, complementary therapies and
psychological counselling. In the 2019/20 FY, we completed 112 day care and out-patient service
episodes.
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EXBEtt DyingatHome

BMEP-—EAEZNRERE REERANBIEE AMELEENER AURAREAZEEAFE
EFEREmRE -2 AFERMNXERERBCHYUBARATKERBENRE  EMMFE
BRI -

One of our core principles is to ensure that our patients have the flexibility to make their own choices, including the
setting in which they would like spend their final days. For some patients, dying at home is the preferred option. In the
2019/20 FY, we fuffilled the wishes of 6 terminal patients by helping them pass away peacefully at home.

HRSEE 52 Day Activity Programs

BRAEGRBAMBREBENELTER BESSEELRARMANBREEZERTHMGY BRES FIH
fE-HRED BEZEY RERAERANLERETE 201920 %  HMHAEHR TREBREES 20
ANIR284N o

Day activity programs involve games, arts and crafts, light exercises, gardening, and other activities that help improve
the quality of life of patients and caregivers at JCHH. In the 2019/20 FY, 32 day activity programs were organized to
benefit 284 participants.

R#EXE Grief Counselling

BHEARARRBEBRGH RRMABRBOET —EEERLS BEFSZEZRRUARBIERYE &
BERARFKBHOEEBERS - 2019206 F » TR0 TEBKEZ B R W E241 @R E - lRE1,079AK > I
SRR A R KB DN 92 JB B - A A T B AR B BREE N B Bl VR A 4 o

BEERIMANEEER BESH] B EFSESELRIRAEER EHHEHMEEE  BREARKE
RE—EALE HEEMEMNRE  BORINERESE  FXBHHFEBLABR -

An important aspect of our service is to accompany our patients and their families through their grief. JCHH provides
grief counselling services to address any emotional stress or spiritual concerns that our clients may have, help
strengthen interfamily communication, and prepare them for late-stage care and eventual separation. In the 2019/20 FY,
our social work team conducted counselling with 1,079 individuals in 241 families.

Our Farewell Room, Quiet Room, and Lecture Theatre are suited for holding peaceful and dignified memorial services in
honour of the deceased.
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FEWAEZMASL Integrated Palliative and Hospice Care System

AZEFEMEBNANMEEESCED  EEEN2018FERRR/P=FNHEEK A EHRF(PAHC) | #f 3
HE - EFEF_BAFE BFeZERIXEFERERTINEZAER CEXAEALARR BEAER
EARRMTT  BERZEREFH/ANKIIRN - BFPAHCER KRR BEREREM -

Since 2018, SPHC has been developing the Pioneer Integrated Palliative and Hospice Care System (iPAHC), a three-
year endeavor funded by the Innovation and Technology Fund for Better Living. iPAHC is a computer software system
that aims to enhance our service efficiency by enabling our home care staff to view patient information and update
medical records as needed. In the coming year, the system will be implemented in our in-patient ward.

{XPBr B Bh 3t & In-patient Hospice Care Subsidy Program

BHBNERBALEZBTI@AKLERENS T EENERRT - AL T E AT EABFHRENLEMN
SUETTREE - A G AT EER AR - 201920FE AR EEBEFEAEERESBENBR =N+
NELATE-_AXHIBEFEZEZRERENS] ABEQEREESED  ARERBER2019511 A
BOH T - Btk - REMN2019F 12 AHIT1000EZEREIEBAE FERNEREREFESZER X HF
HMEEEDESBRERA - (FHHE21E) -

Our goal is to make quality hospice and palliative care accessible to everyone, which is why we offer financial subsidies
to underprivileged patients. Subsidy applications are assessed by our social workers with due consideration to the
applicants’ financial situation. In the 2019/20 FY, the Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust sponsored HK$3,485,002
under the three-year “The Jockey Club In-patient Hospice Care Subsidy Program”. The Jockey Club In-patient Hospice
Care Subsidy Program was completed on 30 November 2019, benefitting a total of 69 underprivileged families who
used our services. To maintain financial subsidies for those in need, the “1000 Hospice Families Subsidy Program” was
launched in December 2019 to raise additional funds. (For more details, please refer to P.21)
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B AE 5 E  Patient Referral Program

AREAKBRERAGARN TERKEN BESSZE2XAEREERE THYHERLBEREREP L
BIE HITIRAENGHE] - 52 #1TH HR2019F 10 8 2202053 A - H11 B WAL EELEN - E
BEX)PHBRAOERESTORBOBHBEA WEFBEXKALER ATENEARER Y REREERH
WEERAERE - mALREK  IEEHARREFEEREREBRERSR -

In order to alleviate overcapacity in public hospitals, JCHH launched the Patient Referral Program in collaboration with
Shatin Hospital and Bradbury Hospice. Under the Patient Referral Program, terminally ill patients who were Hong Kong
permanent residents and receiving palliative care services from Shatin Hospital or Bradbury Hospice were eligible for
referral to JCHH. Service charges were equivalent to the amounts levied by the Hospital Authority. Upon discharge from
JCHH, the referred patient had the option to be followed up by the JCHH home care team. The Patient Referral Program
ran from October 2019 to March 2020 and served a total of 11 patients.

20198 R ESHEHNBFFEEE COVID-19 Preventative Measures

2019 MmEREBRE WA - BINEHR > TP ERABEBERER - AMELA—MEREIRESE]MNE
EPL RAMEBREERALINRE TESERARE ERHARETEEZBABEEINEZAG -

FAEBAR2020F1 A5 BB ESRERH ] BFEZE2RXRTRNZEER EERIITERR B
HEHBEREARRS ERFEFEBRRAFRE - EHMASTTRA-BRAZEBE BHER
B R -

EREHER RAASRBANESBERETRRI G FTEERNBA  EARMCEBBIHUTRKS
REZBERA] 2BETAIAE-

When the number of COVID-19 cases increased, many hospitals imposed firm restrictions on visitation. However, as a
hospice that promotes “family participation”, we must not only ensure the health and safety of our patients, but also take
into account the important and active role family members play in the end-of-life process.

In response to the “Emergency Response Level” issued by the HKSAR Government on 25 January 2020, JCHH
implemented several infection control measures, including limiting visiting hours, prohibiting visitation for those who have
been in pandemic-affected areas, requiring health declarations and more. However, we have continued to allow one
family member to accompany and care for the patient overnight.

In-patient admissions are subjected to a detailed risk assessment based on the criticalness of the case. If admission is
required, a rapid COVID-19 test will be performed followed by immediate admission if the results are negative.
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Community Bereavement — Service Figures at a Glance

206 {& No. of case 372 2% No. of service sessions
B2 B2 @ &= Beneficiaries T # 8§ Z Face-to-face Counselling

(1 g=n" fsmsk
- >

1 45 /X No. of service sessions 663 X No. of service sessions
& 5% X & Telephone support 52 &1 X & Text message support

* 2019/20F E 8 F Figures of the 2019/20 Fiscal Year

HEREZIEHS

Community Bereavement

ZEERFBIEFRER BEREZHINES BNEBHERBXEIRE  HHREEZ
EREMARERMERAOARBIEE -

Our motto — “Those who died could rest in peace whilst those who stay could be at ease” — has
guided our efforts in delivering a comprehensive community bereavement service aimed at helping
grieving individuals cope with the loss of a loved one.

BABHERXE Individual Counselling

EEGMTFRIY BRI HMELZRE B EREMNREZ AN YETFTHELEEEE
BHEHRE A EZEHREREEFABEARE RAR0ISFEESEE 2 RIBR
F T E =R E AR B 0 2019/204F [E H 5 B 206 {E E 2 + AR 75 A X B 464 A ©

The Jessie and Thomas Tam Centre (JTTC) was established by SPHC in 1997 for the purpose of
developing and providing bereavement support to meet the wide-ranging needs of the community. In
2018, we began offering community bereavement service at a second location — JCHH. In the
2019/20 FY, our community bereavement service handled 206 cases and served 464 individual clients.

/N4ESEEN  Group Activities

2019/205F > HPIBEB TMARERBH G NE  —REBERE MAFORBALEE N
R—REFRRZRENRBEBENERLZE - XBEARBOA - ER2019BMRESHEIGEE - &
MERBEEZHELIELEFE REBEFLFE ZARBEEANFTHFEERBHENR
BEE 2MABROA - BATEBBLEFEBEMXE HERARERBHHEIMAX
ETREHRAL-

In the 2019/20 FY, we organized two bereaved elderly support groups, one remembrance program,
two tea gatherings for newly bereaved individuals, and one Christmas Celebration program for
bereaved children and their caregivers. The programs served 90 beneficiaries in total.

Due to the Covid-19 pandemic, many of our programs were either cancelled or suspended. At the
height of the outbreak, we successfully organized a virtual bereavement event in which 41 bereaved
clients came together to share and encourage one another. Educational articles were also published on
our social media to help the public support grieving individuals during the pandemic.
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EXBIIRATRAB

Healthcare Professionals Training and Public Education

ZEGREBBHET ARHNERBEREZIRENEE BN REBRBEBEMTEEIER
BEENER BEABEABRRMKEI BACMANERKT R A@EHBTAMH
BEMNRE REMEARYRRBEERENRET SBefRPAeBFELH-

SPHC is one of the leading organizations in providing end-of-life training programs in Hong Kong. In
our mission to further the local development of hospice and palliative care, we offer training to
healthcare professionals to elevate the level of care support for their respective patients. Public talks
and forums are organized regularly to raise community awareness on fundamental end-of-life issues
and planning.

o]
WM N WHHH

EEEEEEEE
SEEEE88E

HEEEEI

For Healthcare Professionals

FE+AREEBFEREMSS
The 16th Hong Kong Palliative Care Symposium

[BE+ A NEEATERBENT S IN2019F10F19BBE St AT EHREAEIBRNET 4
280 ¥ AN+ 2 8 o # 57 € ¥ & A& [ Palliative Care in Practice ] * [EFiPRAT EEIBEZSINERA
o RENBERYLGTERRRBRERHBFET TS T HEMBEMELE EML L+
BMBLELARZIHE EER O EFEEERB - RSN EBEZNERATERLSZEMS
TR -

The 16th Hong Kong Palliative Care Symposium was successfully held on 19 October 2019 at The
Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups Building. The event was officiated by Prof. Sophia Chan,
Secretary for Food and Health, and had over 280 healthcare professionals in attendance. The theme
was “Palliative Care in Practice”, which explored the practical applications of palliative care. Guest
speakers Dr. Lam Po Tin, Ms. Ko Po Shan Polly, Dr. Poon Yin and Prof. Amy Chow were featured
among the presenters who shared their research findings.
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HX R 15 E X ETE
Professional Services Advancement Support Scheme

2019/20F E  [EXERBBERAS I EHEESG R R MEARKBERBIEY  ATRELELHE &
REIETMIERREG S - B 05628 - BB R HR44/E o

Thanks to the generous support of the Professional Services Advancement Support Scheme, SPHC completed 11
end-of-life care workshops in the 2019/20 FY. In total, 44 hours of training were provided to 956 healthcare
professionals, covering topics on life-and-death education, end-of-life care and advance care planning.

DBHE
Public Education

B RS sHiE Latter Life Forum

Ern ER2019F6 AR R MERE] FHEFTRAPELL BRETLL BEEB LI RRXHEE
PN ABEIHIETRRBRRBEA S NS A EEIERY - A HBOA2HERE -

The Latter Life Forum was held on 15 June 2019. The forum began with an introduction to advance care planning by
Dr. Jack Leung and Dr. Theresa Lai, followed by a dialogue on palliative care between Mrs. Yvonne Siu Sun Yuk Bui
and Ms. Leila Chan. The event attracted 80 participants.

HMEE

AFREHENEE Education Outreach

BANBEFERKSEREAREHETHAALELR EAXBENMEIFL  RABBEIERE

CEIBREINFTENTIERE FELELHIRAARYGEEE BREE EREERETEES
EE’JMD& WINBRARHEEGHRIE RIBRZ BB - £2019205F % - &{Fﬂ%%tﬂr#\m 58 M
TYEY  BMERERITE/NE - HEMB2030A - M MESMBHBERIER - A2 -

T
93
o
=
=
Q
8
2
@
o
3
=
[s}
(23
.
o
=3
o,
w

Xk WIe

=
=
.
=]
@
[
=]
a
o
=
o
5
m
o
f=
S
=
)
=]

The SPHC clinical team is highly qualified with many years of combined palliative care experience. As part of our
education outreach efforts, our staff frequently attend speaking engagements to raise awareness on issues such as
palliative care, end-of-life care, and advance directive, and to promote our mission and services. In the 2019/20 FY, our
staff spoke at 41 forums, lectures and workshops to 2,030 participants for a total of 97.5 teaching hours.
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HHELIER
Education Activities Highlight

HH# Date SEE) Activity B  Organizer
2019/4/25 Clinical Practice of Caring & Counseling on grief experienced by patients’ families 5= -
. . - FeTEMN
Medical Regulations and Related laws on Palliative Care Jockey Club End-of-Life Gommunity Care Project
Ethical dilemma on Clinical Palliative Care Decisions
2019/5/20  Introduction of Advance Care Planning & Advance Directive BERERXKRE
The Chinese University of Hong Kong
2019/6/20  3GEW A &8 TR12 BEBTIABHEEEESMK
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University, SPEED
2019/7/20 MEREERERE BB BEGELELEREEERBE
Yang Memorial Methodist Social Service
2019/8/15 Common Psycho-social-suffering & it’s handling FHE B2
Caritas Evergreen Home
2019/8/31 Emergency Management in Palliative Care EHEKE
The University of Hong Kong
2019/9/6 REWERTI N ER RESEHTERBEE
Baptist Oi Kwan Social Service
2019/11/5  How are terminal ill patients cared in hospice setting? EEBEgRAMERBER
The Hong Kong Medical Association — Tai Po Community Network
2019/12/5 Palliative Care — Sharing on Dying at Home & Community-based Bereavement Care & Support BIrEER
Hospital Authority
2019/12/12  Grief and Bereavement and Customer Services BYEEGEE

Food and Environmental Hygiene Department

BERIRLAREE-—BF—E

Healthcare Professionals Training and Public Education — Service Figures at a Glance

28 A% No. of participants

BEXREEE
1 y 236 @ Healthcare Professionals

Training

2,110 T 23%53

[;*,) Public Education

AN

3,346 ] fom

Total

* 2019/204F € # ¢ Figures of 2019/20 Fiscal Year

2178  No. of sessions

12

42

54
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Publicity and Fundraising Events

EERER AR TXRNFEPNIENEZEE  RANTERNEEES  2BREBRBEA @
A RAMBEEZECENRHR "RENEZAFTENRAREREERGREERY A8 F8HZ
HEFEEH -

SPHC is a self-financing NGO that does not receive subsidies from the Government. Our administrative and operating
costs are funded through service income and donations from individuals, companies and charitable foundations. In order
to maintain care subsidies for underprivileged patients and continue promoting palliative care in Hong Kong, SPHC
organized the following fundraising activities in the past year.

1000E ZEEREE B E 1000 Hospice Families Subsidy Program

RERBAREFZBTIERALERE MRZELENEBRFEELE  SESN2019F12 £ #1771000
AEEREIENTE - NTERERR/BENESE T UEH —TELSBERENBAAEZIETEEEZR] -

E# Date 11 12 2019 &

AEREEREEEREBHBEE _TE8TFERFENERIEDERE] BURBESHBERARALZESR e i e y
Bt EHEZEZTERA - ggg
o =20 T L
p ; . ; » ; e i TR S
The | 1000 Hosplce Famlllgs Subsidy Program was launched |h lDlecember. 201 9 as pgrt of SPHC’s mission to make " :ﬁ;ars Eﬁjﬁ\ = TEIE HKS 200,000 %‘Iaw
quality hospice and palliative care accessible to everyone. The initial fundraising target is HK$4,000,000 to help 1,000 = e
underprivileged patients and their families receive care at the Jockey Club Home for Hospice. Chinachem Group, one of ﬁ ﬁg % @
the Pioneer Sponsors of the Program, made a generous donation of HK$200,000 and appealed to the public for their ChincL(:hem Erog& |
support. N
EREETRERZE R AL (BL)BEXETEES  THWT
ZEETRREZBLRRER -
@ Mr. Donald Choi, Chief Executive Officer of Chinachem Group (left) presents
BRI BB S a cheque to Dr. Hubert Chan, JP, Chairman of the Executive Committee of
Pioneer Sponsor CHINACHEM GROUP SPHC.

ERMEE
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FEOEIMMEERANE | ERITRE
The 29th Annual Light Up A Life Christmas Concert

BHERAAEN ML AL ERZTLE SFESELRBHEE R KE K E Z%HE - Eizabeth
Stewart - R2019F 12 ABERFPRENYEE REIFX LB LM - FEHWSIBME00ALE - HEBEREE
ERTET BERAERELERSEECRESRAEMBB GBS A FELTHERES -

On 3 December 2019, the Light Up A Life Christmas Concert once again invited first-rate musical talents Hong Kong
Welsh Male Voice Choir, Elizabeth Stewart to deliver a memorable performance in celebration of love and care at St.
John’s Cathedral. The special evening concluded with over 600 participants in attendance and more than HK$600,000
raised to support the operation of SPHC. SPHC’s Honorary President Prof. Anthony Wu, GBS, JP, was the evening’s
guest speaker.

B_EILREHKEEBA | The 2nd Seniors E-sports & Experience Day

ERTRARFEANDE | ZEQHYHEERARAA BEIXRS D28 KREHL BEFEFILE
AE BEMRERBE AN ERELLEBRA] 300 KENR2019F7TATAREBAEATERRE
(VR) BB LG BMNEUER - M EFEEEHRFABMEATIEENFTERTM - X RHREK LM EXERIRED
BYHLE 2ERTPNREDHEHEETE -

You don’t have to be young to enjoy E-sports! SPHC partnered with Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company
Limited, Federation of Hong Kong Industries, Rotary Club of Smart Hong Kong, Hong Kong Young Industrialists Council
and Hong Kong Innovative Technology Development Association to hold the 2nd Seniors E-sports & Experience Day on
27 July 2019. This year, over 300 elderly participants gathered in Cyberport to compete in a virtual reality football
tournament and game booths. Guest appearances by the Lee Man Football Club and Wofoo Tai Po Football Club,
coupled with professional commentary by Mr. Ho Ching Kong, made the event extra special.

EZEFEEZHEIBE JennyKeung Charity Concert

(MERERF — ZBFEZEBEIN2019F4 AR 10ARBEFN D AREERT EESRHMS LN
HOEEFA/NML BMEEREEHNHRAIRz2EE REEEATSEZEN AABEOD+ET2EERBAN
SREEAE NEREBRTEEERY -

The Jenny Keung Charity Concert was held at the Queen Elizabeth Stadium on 9 and 10 April 2019. We would like to
thank Ms. Jenny Keung for donating the proceeds from the two-day concert and charity sales of her solo album, totaling
HK$400,000 after expenses, to support the development of SPHC’s hospice and palliative care services.
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BPHAFEFTLEE Christmas Luncheon Concert

(BEEeEELRIN2010F12A27BERGHHE K= BHREAREERKEELEKNERTIERTMHE
BEe] RERBMAREZRE  NEHEBX LN EHRRBE  FEBALE-

On 27 December 2019, SPHC was honoured to host the members of the Chamber Music Society of Yale Club of Hong

Kong for a “Christmas Luncheon Concert”. Their unforgettable performance brought joy and blessing to our in-patients
and their families.

Z 1L ZE1T Hike for Hospice

Ey

Z09EREEREBEE RELARABRKE2NENEZETEXNRERE  EEQRESRFTN20204F
SH22RAEMMIBIUZTIEPES - Elt FERHZLERZNENED T

o

Due to the local Covid-19 situation, the annual Hike for Hospice event originally scheduled for 22 March 2020 was w — -
postponed to ensure the safety of our participants and volunteers. The Society extends heartfelt thanks to all 3 d\\ i \‘\!‘RT

participating corporations and hikers for their sponsorship and support. Vi A

23 e W

-
5
2 O
.5 w
=0

5o
©°S W
me

53
=
"




24

£ 1

N —

Voices for Jockey Club Home for Hospice
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Death is an inevitability and hospice care was my plan for it

Dr. Wilfred Siu Yuen Chan, JP

Although death is something we all must face, discussing it continues to be taboo in many places. Dr. Wilfred Siu Yuen Chan, JP, believes
otherwise. Despite suffering from terminal liver cancer, he has adopted a positive and open-minded view on death. At the end of the year, Dr. Chan
initiated contact with us to learn more about SPHC'’s services before accepting our Home Care, Day Service and In-patient Service.

Q:  Please tell us something about yourself?

A:  As a Hong Kong native, | was educated at Wah Yan College Kowloon before studying civil engineering at Loughborough University of Technology in England. After returning to Hong
Kong, | worked for corporations such as Shell and Esso before starting my own management consultancy firm in 1983.
When Esso appointed me to the board, | was entitled to join two clubs. Despite Esso being an American company, | decided to join the Hong Kong Club and became one of its
earliest local members at the time. In 1996, | became the Vice-chairman of the club and would have become its Chairman had | not been diagnosed with colon and gallbladder cancer
later that year. | resigned. It was definitely one of those missed opportunities in my life.
2004 was an eventful year for me. It was the year | took retirement. That same year, | moved to Singapore in part because my wife, a retired medical doctor, is Singaporean. During
that time, my wife and | would travel to Hong Kong once a month to stay in touch with our friends and family. Singapore is a fine city but if | am being honest, | missed the energy and
vibrancy of Hong Kong. In 2012, we eventually decided to relocate back to Hong Kong for good.

Q:  What has your battle with cancer been like?

A:  Not long after my cancer diagnosis in 1996, | had an operation to remove my gallbladder and a portion of my colon. Despite opting out of chemotherapy and radiation therapy, |
managed to make a full recovery and became cancer-free. It was not until January 2019 that | was re-diagnosed with cancer, this time in my liver. Once again, | refused treatment and
was fortunate enough to have been pain-free. In April 2019, | was informed the cancer had metastasized. If | had begun cancer treatments, my quality of life would have been very
poor. Instead, | was able to enjoy 20 months of high quality of life. All of my family, friends and doctors agree that | made the best possible decision. | think it goes to show it is possible
for a cancer patient to live a relatively normal life without the treatments and very unpleasant side effects.
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Q:  What prompted you to seek hospice care and how did you hear about JCHH?

A: | have always had a habit of planning ahead. Death is an inevitability and hospice care was simply my plan for it. | am very fond of horseracing and in my most recent outings to the
Shatin Racecourse, | remember looking across the river and seeing Bradbury Hospice and JCHH. Once | began to seriously consider hospice care, | consulted my godson Anthony, a
former Chair Professor of Surgery at The Chinese University of Hong Kong, on initiating the process. He immediately called JCHH to schedule a visit and here | am.
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What are your views on medication and cancer treatment now?

| am on minimal medications, mostly for non-treatment related issues like cholesterol. As for cancer treatments, | have continued to decline them due to the ever-growing list of side
effects. A doctor once told me that the side effects could include fatigue and diarrhea. How am | supposed to play mahjong if | have to use the restroom all the time!

Mahjong is one of my great passions. | strongly believe one of the reasons the men and women of Hong Kong boast the highest life expectancy in the world is because they play
mahjong. In fact, when | moved back to Hong Kong from Singapore, | formed a mahjong group that is currently 45 members strong. We used to meet for an all-day “mahjong
marathon” once every six months. Some of my fondest memories are from playing mahjong!

Holistic hospice care addresses four main areas — physical, psychological, social and spiritual. Would you provide some insight on your present condition?

Death is accepted as a fact of life in English culture. In contrast, death is heavily stigmatized in Chinese culture. As a self-admitted anglophile, | have never been afraid to come to
terms with my own death. | had my will drawn up when | was in my thirties. Obituaries are typically written after death but my obituary is already being drafted because | want to ensure
everything is in order. In other words, | am psychologically prepared.

Physically, | am thankful to be without pain at the moment. Socially, | play mahjong with my friends
nearly every weekend. Spiritually, | am a non-practicing Catholic. | do not believe | have any
unfinished business. My advance care plan has been completed and all my affairs have been settled.
| have no regrets.

Do you have any parting words for our readers?
Reach out and connect with people instead of waiting for them to come to you.

EESWITZEESFREREEF THRAKRIRE L
Dr. Wilfred Chan interviewed by Dr. Hubert Chan, Chairman of SPHC Executive Committee.
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HiTEEBHRS
Report of the Executive Committee

The members of executive committee submit their annual report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2020.

Business Review
Overview

The Society for the Promotion of Hospice Care (“the Society”) is a non-profit making organization registered in Hong Kong
with a mission to promote the belief that everyone has the right to live with dignity at every stage of life, including the end.
The Society also advocates for the development of quality hospice and palliative care, which encompasses the physical,
psychological, social and spiritual aspects of care to patients with life-limiting illness and their families.

The Society is exempted from tax under section 88 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance.

Main Areas of Work

Jockey Club Home for Hospice

The Jockey Club Home for Hospice (“the Home”) was established by the Society in 2016 to provide quality hospice and
palliative care for patients with life-limiting illness. The Home is equipped with 30 private, self-contained ensuite rooms and
supported by a team of clinical professionals, social workers and volunteers. Aside from in-patient care, the Home also
offers exceptional home care services for patients who prefer to receive quality care at home instead of hospitalization.

Bereavement Support

The Society operates The Jessie and Thomas Tam Centre, a community bereavement support centre that provides
professional counselling, education and resources to individuals facing the loss of a loved one. Bereavement support
services are also available at the Home.

Advocacy

The Society is a pioneer in the promotion of hospice and palliative care in Hong Kong. In recent years, the Society has
increased collaboration efforts with NGOs, community partners, and other healthcare sectors to exchange clinical practices
and explore technology applications for enhancing the delivery of hospice and palliative care services. Public talks and
forums are organized regularly to raise community awareness on fundamental end-of-life issues and planning.

Professional Education and Training

The Society is one of the leading organizations in providing end-of-life training programmes in Hong Kong. Ever committed
in its mission to further the local development of hospice and palliative care, the Society offers training to healthcare
professionals to raise the level of care support for their respective patients. The Society also provides educational
workshops on bereavement support to help organizations address the needs of grieving staff and clients.
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Financial Performance
Key financial performance

o Total income in year 2019-20 for the Society was amounted to HK$32.22 million, which represents a decrease of 4%
from the 2018-19 financial year.

o Total income for year 2019-20 is summarized below:
1. Service Fee and other income, in support of the operation of the Jockey Club Home for Hospice, donations
and fundraising income, were amounted to HK$17.02 million, HK$0.23 milion and HK$6.01 million
respectively;

2. Donations and Fee Income, in support of public education and professional end-of-life care training, were
amounted to HK$0.59 million and HK$0.23 million respectively;

3. Donations and Fee Income, in support of bereavement care, were amounted to HK$0.01 million;
4., Donations gathered through fundraising activities were amounted to HK$2.26 million;
5. General donations and other income received were amounted to HK$1.9 milion and HK$0.48 million
respectively.
o Donations from The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust in support of a 3-year Palliative Care Service for the

Underprivileged Programme were amounted to HK$3.49 million and have been recorded as donation income.

o Total expenditure for year 2019-20 was HK$41.92 million, which represents an increase of 6% from the 2018-19
financial year.

° Total expenditure for year 2019-20 are summarized below:

1. Operational costs for Jockey Club Home for Hospice were amounted to HK$36.82 million, which represents
88% of the total expenditure.
2. Programme costs for public education and professional end-of-care training were amounted to HK$1.24

million and allocations for the development of hospice and palliative care services were amounted to HK$0.05
million. The sum of the two items represents 3% of the total expenditure.
3. Programme costs for bereavement care were amounted to HK$0.72 million, which represents 2% of the total

expenditure.

4. Fundraising and communications costs were amounted to HK$1.36 million, which represents 3% of the total
expenditure.

5. General administrative and operational costs were amounted to HK$1.73 million, which represents 4% of the

total expenditure.

Future Development of the Society’s Business

After extensive deliberation, the Executive Committee agreed to register the Home under the nursing home license (Cap.
459) issued by the Social Welfare Department. The license application was submitted and is in progress. If the application is
successful, the transition would have no effect on the Society’s service scope and quality, and instead serve to improve the
cost effectiveness of its operations.

The Society aims to strengthen its status as one of the leading organizations for the promotion of hospice care. Future
developments will include cross-sectoral collaboration efforts with local, regional and overseas partners to further promote
best care practices and public awareness on hospice care.

Principal Risk and Uncertainties

Ongoing fundraising efforts are needed to finance operations, support subsidies for underprivileged patients and maintain
overall care excellence.
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Green Policy

The Society encourages all staff to apply the principles of “reduce”, “reuse” and “recycle”. Double-sided and black-and-
white printing are the default settings for all printers to save paper and minimize the use of colour toners. Recycled paper or
FSC-certified paper is used for printing wherever feasible. Lights are turned off when one vacates the premises. Reusable
office supplies are centrally located and made accessible to all staff.

In 2019, the Society circulated the majority of its annual reports by QR code in an effort to conserve paper and reduce
emissions.

The Society is a registered partner of Carboncare Open Innovation Lab.

Principal Activity

The Society is a non-profit making organization primarily involved in the provision of hospice and palliative care as well as
promotion of hospice care services in Hong Kong.

Accounts

The results of the Society for the year ended 31st March, 2020 are set out in the financial statements on pages 33 to 43.

Executive Committee

The persons whose names appear in the list on page 30 were executive committee members of the Society during the year.

In accordance with Article 35 of the Society’s Articles of Association, all existing Executive Committee members shall hold
office for three years from the date of their appointment. At the expiry of the term of office, they shall retire from office but,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

No contracts of significance, to which the Society was a party and in which a member of Executive Committee had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

At no time during the year was the Society a party of any arrangement to enable the Executive Committee members of the
Society to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Society or any other body corporate.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

During the year and up to the date of this report, the company has in force permitted indemnity provisions for the benefit of
the executive committee members. The permitted indemnity provisions are provided for in the company’s articles of
association.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or substantial part of the business of the Society
was entered into or existed during the year.

Auditors

The financial statements have been audited by Messrs. Li, Tang, Chen & Co., who retire but, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Executive Committee
Dr. Hubert Chan Chung Yee
Chairman
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Z2EER HESEE Honorary Presidents Executive Committee
B #E %2 T MBE I Mrs. Caroline Courtauld, MBE Chairman
27206 B8 4 GBM, GBS, OBE, A F 4+ Dr. Leong Che-hung, GBM, GBS, OBE, JP Dr. Hubert Chan Chung Yee, JP
D E B REEB T AP Rev. John Russell
ERE{E % AGBS al Mr. James E Thompson, GBS Vice Chairman
T #3858 %t EMBE Bl ER Mr. Raymond Wong Siu Keung, MBE
#AE MB 18 £ GBS, K F #h £ & T-1a Prof. Anthony Wu, GBS, JP Dr. Joseph Lea Man Ho
= Honorary Treasurer
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EAXEEZEES BEAE Advisory Council of Governors ,, ... oo ke bin
P ' 9 o
Bl 4 62 18 £ GBS, K F 40 = Members
BRSNS A K P A LB E Dr. Edgar Cheng W K, GBS, JP Honorary Secretary
? ¥ 1§ £ GBM, GBS, OBE, A # = e Mr. Paul Cheng Ming Fun, JP Ms. Rebecca Hung Tsu Wei
MRE R E e Dr. David Li Kwok Po, GBM, GBS, OBE, JP
é E Mr. Stephen C M Sy Members
% gg.ﬁ E J-l% E.E Fl:ﬁ R i A B2 Dr. Chan Kin Sang
T 4R % %8 4 MBE 3 5B 4 Honorary Principal Advisor Mr. Alan Cheung Yick Lun
. L Appointed on 3 March 2020
(RZE_ZEF=ZA=ZHZEE) Mr. Raymond Wong Siu Keung, MBE (Appainted on .ar(.: )
AR+ Ms. Mable Chow Sui Ming
% %i EE ﬁ:ﬁ ron o Es Dr. Christopher Hui Kim Ming
A = . .
REENEEOBE AF# L HonllD  4p2 maym Honorary Advisors Prof. Joanne Chung Wai Yee
# 5 HUlR 22 T CBE, ISO, A ¥ ## & MR Dr. Chiu Hin Kwong, OBE, JP, Hon LLD Mr. Anderson Lam Hin Yue
AR EIRLLBBS R 12 55 24 4% Mrs. Elizabeth Wong, CBE, 1SO, JP Errogir;;:al_gzze ohin
ERFfE B & Mrs. Yvonne Siu Sun Yuk Bui, BBS ' °
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A 44, Hon LLD
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Mr. Tarik Mirza

(RZZ_ZF=A=H#MT
ROKNEF K 4L
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(As of 31 March 2020)

Honorary Legal Advisors
Mr. Denis Chang, CBE, QC, SC, JP, Hon LLD

Mr. Tarik Mirza

(Resigned on 3 March 2020)
Mr. Vincent Ng Wing Shun, JP
Dr. Que Tak Lun
Dr. Joey Tang Chung Yee

BirEE L DLA Piper Hong Kon

gij & - P 9 9 Dr. Janice Tsang Wing Hang

Pk 1A B8 N

PN, Mr. Andrew Gordon Williamson
VR . .

= sy Mr. Francis Wong lu Ming
ERIARE Prof. Thomas Wong Kwok Shing, JP
EAENE S PN i ‘ ’

Mr. Raymond Wong Siu Keung, MBE
T %33 % £ MBE Y 9 o
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Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE MEMBERS OF THE SOCIETY FOR THE PROMOTION OF HOSPICE CARE
(Incorporated in Hong Kong and limited by guarantee)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of The Society for the Promotion of Hospice Care (“the Society”) set out on pages
33 to 43, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2020, and the statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in general fund and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Society as at 31 March 2020 and
of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standard for Private Entities issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) relevant
to these financial statements and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Society in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

The Executive Committee members are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Report of the Executive Committee, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Executive Committee Members for the
Financial Statements

The Executive Committee members are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRS for Private Entities issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
such internal control as the Executive Committee members determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Executive Committee members are responsible for assessing the Society’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concermn
basis of accounting unless the Executive Committee members either intend to liquidate the Society or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Society’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Executive Committee members.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Executive Committee members’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Society’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exits, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Society to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the executive committee members regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our

audit.

Li, Tang, Chen & Co.

Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
17/F Leighton Centre

77 Leighton Road

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong
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Statement of Financial Position As At 31 March 2020

—E-NF
2019
B 7 BT
Note HK$
ERBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
L TS Property, plant and equipment 4 21,102,425 22,764,109
RBEE CURRENT ASSETS
Ve Inventory 215,311 19,366
FEWEBRE K ~ 154 - TE 3R 18 2 H fb FE WL BR X Accounts receivable, deposits, prepayments and other receivables 5 7,453,964 12,957,204
e RIBITEH Cash and bank balances 16,086,013 20,835,287
23,755,288 33,811,857
REBARG CURRENT LIABILITIES
HEMmEMERINESER Other payables and accruals 6 8,125,279 8,590,518
i JE WA Deferred income 7 6,251,014 8,777,872
14,376,293 17,368,390
REBERE NET CURRENT ASSETS 9,378,995 16,443,467 z
g
REERABRME TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 30,481,420 39,207,576 |
(Ol
4
ERBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 1:3;;3:.3
g #
BEEES Designated funds 8 3,065,015 2,094,034 g
2]
EEFE NET ASSETS 27,416,405 37,113,542
AATESER: Financed by:
—REBES GENERAL FUND 27,416,405 37,113,542
?U%ZE@%SS%E%EE@EM%%&%E%:E:ZﬁwﬂﬂE+EIZ%%% REZEL B ELE
ZeitfE R EETIE - Dr. Hubert Chan Chung Yee Mr. Dennis Cheng Kwai Hung
E HEaE

The financial statements on pages 33 to 43 were approved and authorised for .
issue by the executive committee members on 30 October 2020. Chairman Honorary Treasurer
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PN REEE_S_FSF-_A=1+—0HLLFE
Statement of Comprehensive Income for the Year Ended 31 March 2020

-RERES it EEES #E
General Fund Sub-total Designated Funds Total
HERRER REXREER BHREE ARREH HEEREAL EFEZE2R
Education Programme  Grief, Loss and Bereavement Fund Raising and General Administrative Bradbury Hospice Jockey Club Home for
Development Division Care Division Publicity Division Division Division Hospice Division
CECRE ZT-NF CZBORF -R-NF CBCBF CT-NF ZBC%RF BN CRC¥F “T-NF O CBCRF RN CBC¥F “T-NE CS-RF —T-nf —Z-nf
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2019
i3 BT B BT BT BT o BT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT oo
Note HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$
[¢:3 INCOME
EEEDANE Gross income from fundraising events 9 - Bl 2264169 EERYIAN - - 14,052 19575 | kil 3461246 = PR 3461246
EARTERERTES Donation from the Hong Kong Jockey Club
Charties Trust - - - - - - B 3485002 QEE:RPYR/ 3485002 EEERPIVIC) — REESUPS 8 124,200
—RBREA General donations - 55,638 | Rl 2,055,822 - - — PREERRIN 3461447 BRERLGRIGE 5,572,907 = IS 5,572,907
L UN Interest income - 140 - 303,403 343,303 - - 115 303,659 343,558 - 303,659 343,558
HERERE RN (Gross income from education and training courses 414,550 8470 - - - - - 5,600 234,490 428,620 - 234,490 428,620
WA Service income - - - - - = DB 12,978,200 FREANEREEN 12,978,200 = DB 12,978,200
o lia Other income - 3318 - 176,670 312,156 - 230,506 342,514 414,699 657,988 - 414,669 657,988
HefBERA Funds reimbursed from:
The TUYF Charitable Trust The TUYF Charitable Trust 8 - - - - - - - 53,296 986,802 53,296 986,302
flt e sk EREAG BN Drs. Richard Charles & Esther Yewpick Lee
Charitable Foundation 8 - - - - - - - 32,070 192,709 32,070 192,709
EIREEE BN Innovation and Technology Bureau —
Innovation and Technology Fund for Better
Living 8 - - - - - - bl 1952944 [Pl 0521044 660,206
BERBRE LRI ERS Commence and Economic Development
Bureau — Professional Services
Advancement Support Scheme - - - - - - - 304,284 104,571 304,284 104,571
iy Others 8 - - - - - - - 201,000 93,000 201,000 93,000
234,490 414,550 11,082 67,566 | Ll 5,497,493 480,073 655,459 B 24,786,687 WPZXX TN 20,680,982 KRN 2543,504 WP Xverdvi: I 32,204,576 KX TRV
i EXPENDITURE
RAHHS Auditors’ remuneration - - - - - - 82,000 73312 - 7,000 8,620 89,000 81,932 10,000 10,000 99,000 91,932
3 Alocations - - - - - - 50,016 59,193 - - - 50,016 59,193 - - 50,016 59,193
BIRX Staff costs 509,728 183,100 SIRIES 1,001,751 SRHEREIS 1,001,757 ERBIOOIGH 1,008,241 153450 FARELLN 20,317,201 FVIREREIA 25075500 EAPIELS 1205315 FPLEERIE 27,180,844
Be EMRYEERE Rent, rates and bulding management fees - 127,944 118,880 - - - 580,691 569,815 708,635 688,605 5,008 9,948 713,643 698,643
¥ ] Depreciation - 715 - - — LR 1912568 RIS 1,018,083 - - PR 1913283
Rt REERR Design and production - - - - - - - - - 317,500 95,700 317,500 95,700
ENER Drug - - - - - 296,367 568,830 296,367 568,830 - - 296,367 568,830
RERRA Lecture fees - - - - - - - - - 70,230 406,927 70,230 406,927
ERER Catering food cost - - - - - 318,480 305,006 318,480 305,006 - - 318,480 305,006
EER Advertisement - - - - - - - - - - 22,480 - 22,480
IR Contract out senvice - - - 4,256 — | PUEEE 3788078 RIS 3,797,234 391,508 103,890 | BRlPREN 3897124
ERER Consumables - - - - - 110,390 125,534 110,507 125,534 69 - 110,576 125,534
EEREDRE Corporate promotion and event management 35,213 6,779 - 155,516 138,740 158 - 327 121,548 191,532 267,225 113,800 - 305,332 267,225
BERRA Repair and maintenance - - 6,080 3,600 - - - 6,195 - 681,494 495,566 687,574 505,361 - - 687,574 505,361
HEUREHER Programme and activities expense 95,998 59279 965 10,281 152,207 308,924 2,235 12,467 - 95,301 80,825 346,796 493,776 115 - 346,911 493,776
BEYRRE Medical supplies & equipment - - - - - - - - - 423,298 497,713 423,98 497,113 - - 423,298 497,713
RARX Utilties - - 14,642 36,395 - 165 - 5516 = DRZGIER 1,106,041 REIZREE 1,148,117 29,261 24758 | RSP 1172875
EMTRREEMNY Other administrative and operating expenses 10,469 1427 5,349 7832 48,837 154,931 107,774 55,871 KRl 1,249,573 914606 | Ll 1,138,023 393,809 158,270 | akan 1,296,203
651,408 250,585 IR 1,179,454 SSRRGUIEN 1844517 FNEAEAE 1,315,200 156,815 |RLEGEIEIN 30,814,871 FRLRICHREN 87,561,450 [ AIRERIE 2,037,288 FUARPANARE 39,598,739
KEE(FR)/BBRAFERE (DEFICITYSURPLUS FOR THE YEAR AND
(%4)/BA TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (EXPENSE)/
INCOME FOR THE YEAR (416,918) 163,965 | IR (1,111,888) | ERRIA 3652076 | IR (659,750) (156,815) NUWNIGRIRN  (7,883,121) [LEKEIARGN  (5,994,63) = P EIAEYE (5,994,633




—REERERENRGEE_S_SF-_A=-1+—08I1LFE
Statement of Changes in General Fund for the Year Ended 31 March 2020

—RREBES
General fund
BT
HK$
R N\FUNA—BzES®EE Balance as at 1 April 2018 43,108,175
FRNEEZ L BE Total comprehensive expenses for the year (5,994,633)
RZZE—NFZA=Z+—"HEZ-ZZTE—NFWUA—HZELMHE Balanceasat31 March2019and 1 April 2019 37,113,542
FREEME LB Total comprehensive expenses for the year (9,697,137)
RZE_EF=ZA=t+—HzELESH Balance as at 31 March 2020 27,416,405
i 2 - = = = =] p— — —_—
RenhREsEXadEZE _S_SF=_H=1+—HIL=FE
Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 March 2020
—E-®%  —E-Af
2020 2019
B 7T BT
HKS$ HK$
ReTH OPERATING ACTIVITIES
FAREAE ) Deficit for the year (9,697,137) (5,994,633)
FRFIBEELFE Adjustments for:
MEWA Interest income (303,659) (343,558)
e Depreciation 1,913,774 1,913,283
BEESEE Operating loss before working capital changes (8,087,022) (4,424,908)
GF&EZEm \ Increase in inventory (195,945) (19,366)
FEWBR IR - 2 - FAA FRIE K H A FEURBR 0 2k 2, (3E ) Decrease/(increase) in accounts receivable, deposits, prepayments and other receivables 5,503,240 (3,775,550)
(H\ 1 FE AT BR /tff)( LEFTEBERZ R D Decrease in other payables and accruals (465,239) (289,392)
PBE WA 2 R Decrease in deferred income (2,526,858) (1,639,620)
EERES 2 M Increase in designated funds 970,981 709,890
RETEAES SHE Net cash used in operating activities (4,800,843) (9,438,946)
REEH INVESTING ACTIVITIES
2 WEUAE R Interest received 303,659 343,558
BAME KB REE Purchases of property, plant and equipment (252,090) (1,959,401)
REZBELE (FR)Z2BEEEE Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities 51,569 (1,615,843)
RERBAESEEYRLFE NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (4,749,274) (11,054,789)
REVNZzEERESEEYEREE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 20,835,287 31,890,076
RERZRERBSZEYHRE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 16,086,013 20,835,287
REeRASEBYIN ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
RITE TR Time deposit with bank
— DR = & A 2 55 — Maturity less than 3 months 11,793,798 17,691,433
He RIRTTH % Cash and bank balances 4,292,215 3,143,854

16,086,013

20,835,287
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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1.

General Information

The Society for the Promotion of Hospice Care (“the Society”) is incorporated under the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and is limited by guarantee. The address of its registered office of the Society is No. 18 A Kung Kok Shan
Road, Shatin, New Territories. Every member of the Society undertakes to contribute to the assets of the Society, in
the event of its being winded up, such amount as may be required not exceeding HK$10. At 31 March 2020, there
were 161 (2019: 169) members.

The principal activity of the Society is to promote hospice care services in Hong Kong.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which was the functional currency of the Society.

Transition to the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard for
Private Entities

The Society’s financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 are its first annual financial statements prepared
under accounting policies that comply with the HKFRS for Private Entities. The Society applied full Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards to prepare its financial statements prior to the application of the HKFRS for Private
Entities.

The Society’s date of transition is 1 April, 2019 and the Society prepared its opening statement of financial position in
compliance with HKFRS for Private Entities at that date. The first adoption of the HKFRS for Private Entities has no
impact on the financial position and results of the Society previously presented.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation:

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with HKFRS for Private Entities (which also include
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations), issued by the HKICPA, accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirement of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS for Private Entities requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
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b)

d)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation:

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost
of an asset comprises its purchases price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditures incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been
put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, are normally charged to income or expenditure in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase
in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of the property, plant and equipment, the
expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that asset.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off their depreciable
amounts over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Others Jockey Club Home for Hospice
Jockey Club Home for Hospice N/A The shorter of 50 years and
the unexpired term of lease
Medical equipments N/A 12.5% per annum
Leasehold land Over the unexpired term of lease N/A
Buildings 2% per annum N/A

33.33% per annum
33.33% per annum

20% per annum
20% per annum

Furniture and fixtures
Office equipment

Computers 50% per annum 33.33% per annum
Leasehold improvements 20% per annum 20% per annum
Motor vehicles 50% per annum N/A

The gain or loss on disposal of a property, plant and equipment recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income is the difference between the net sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

The asset’s residual value and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Receivables:

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables is established
when there is objective evidence that the Society will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original
terms of receivables. The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. The amount of the provisions is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Operating leases:

Leases where substantially all rewards and risks of ownership of assets, other than legal title, remain with the leasing
Society are accounted for as operating leases. Rentals applicable to such operating leases are charged to the
statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Cash and cash equivalents:

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short-term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Society’s cash management.
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f)

g)

h)

)

Impairment of assets:

An assessment is made at each reporting date of whether there is any indication of impairment of any asset, or
whether there is any indication that an impairment loss previously recognised for an asset in prior years may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is calculated as the higher of the asset’s value in use and its net selling price.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is charged to the statement of comprehensive income in the period in which it arises.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of an asset, however not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation), had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is credited to the statement of comprehensive income in the period in which it arises.

Payables:

Payables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Designated funds:

Designated funds represent funding or specific donations which cannot be used at the discretion of the Society and
are established from donations and contributions which are earmarked for specific purposes. Income or expenditure
relating to these designated funds are dealt with in the respective fund accounts.

Grant received from The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust for
Construction of Jockey Club Home for Hospice:

The grant received for contribution of building will be deducted from the cost of construction in calculating the
carrying amount of the asset. The other grant is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income over the life of
a depreciable asset as a reduced depreciation expense.

Revenue recognition:

Revenue is recognised when the Society satisfies a performance obligation by transferring promised good or service
to customer obtains control over the good or service. When the performance obligation is satisfied, revenue is
recognised at the amount of the transaction price that is allocated to that performance obligation. Further details of
the Society revenue recognition is as follows:

i) Income from fundraising events, donations and other income
Income from fundraising events is recognised when the events are held.
Donations relating to property, plant and equipment other than the Jockey Club Home for Hospice are

included in non-current liabilities as deferred income and are recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

Donations, which are earmarked for specific purposes, are initially recognised as deferred income and are then
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income over the period necessary to match with the related
costs which they are intended to compensate.

Other donations and other income are recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

i)  Membership fees
Membership fees is recognised on an accrual basis.

iii)  Service income and income from education and training courses
Service income and income from education and training courses are recognised at a point in time when the
performance of the relevant services is completed.

iv) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method.
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k)

Retirement benefit scheme:

The Society joins a defined contribution scheme under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (The “MPF
Scheme”) for those employees of the Society. The Society’s contribution to the MPF Scheme are made based on a
percentage of the eligible employees’ relevant income as defined in the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance. These contributions are charged to the statement of comprehensive income as incurred. The assets of
the scheme are held separately from those of the Society in independently administered funds.

Taxation:

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax or deferred tax has been made as the Society has been exempted under
section 88 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance from any tax by reason of being a charitable institution or trust of a public
character.

Translation of foreign currencies:

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the rates of exchange ruling at
the translation dates. Monetary assets and liabilities expressed in foreign currencies at the end of the reporting period
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. All of the
exchange differences are dealt with in income or expenditure.

Related parties:

a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Society if that person:

i) has control or joint control over the Society;
ii) has significant influence over the Society; or
jii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Society or the Society’s parent.

b) An entity is related to the Society if any of the following conditions applies:

i) the entity and the Society are members of the same group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a member).

jii) both entities are joint ventures of a same third party.

iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

V) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Society or an
entity related to the Society.

Vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

Vi) aperson identified in (a)() has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Provisions:

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Society has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.
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4. Property, Plant and Equipment

ERgEE BRI R
2R BERE BEERE PLERE Eil HEYXXKE RE &5t
Jockey Club
Home for Medical Furniture Office Leasehold Motor
Hospice equipments and fixtures equipment Computers improvements vehicles Total

BT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT

HK$ HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
%N Cost
RZE—-NFMHA—H At 1.4.2018 17,309,878 2,833,856 3,255,934 377,450 949,120 1,639,353 176,247 26,541,838
NE Additions 1,358,635 455,580 22,380 117,046 5,760 - - 1,959,401
RZE—NEF=A=+—H At31.3.2019and 1.4.2019 18,668,513 3,289,436 3,278,314 494,496 954,880 1,639,353 176,247 28,501,239
NE Additions 75,000 157,870 13,300 5,920 - - - 252,090
RZEZEF=A=+—H At 31.3.2020 18,743,513 3,447,306 3,291,614 500,416 954,880 1,639,353 176,247 28,753,329
e Accumulated depreciation
RZE—NFMHA—H At1.4.2018 378,358 573,747 1,002,299 216,919 610,681 865,597 176,246 3,823,847
FANWE Charge for the year 437,751 371,455 644,293 59,176 175,113 225,495 — 1,913,283
RZZE—NFMA—H At 31.3.2019and 1.4.2019 816,109 945,202 1,646,592 276,095 785,794 1,091,092 176,246 5,737,130
FAME Charge for the year 412,973 413,874 645,849 64,149 151,434 225,495 - 1,913,774
RZEZEF=A=+—H At 31.3.2020 1,229,082 1,359,076 2,292,441 340,244 937,228 1,316,587 176,246 7,650,904
BREFE Net book value
RZZE-_ZEF=A=+—H At 31.3.2020 17,514,431 2,088,230 999,173 160,172 17,652 322,766 1 21,102,425
RZE—-—NF=A=+—H At 31.3.2019 17,852,404 2,344,234 1,631,722 218,401 169,086 548,261 1 22,764,109

HETHEEFAEHBAELMNEE -
(BESESE2RI/THHEESMLRES

The leasehold land and buildings are held on a long lease in Hong Kong.

The Jockey Club Home for Hospice held in Hong Kong under medium term lease.
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FEWEEF %€ FENFERH#MELW 5. Accounts Receivables, Deposits, Prepayments and Other

N Receivables
gt —T—A
2020 2019
BT BT
HK$ HK$
FE UK BR 3R Accounts receivables 598,138 485,319
H fb fE Uk BR 3k Other receivables 6,257,593 11,778,116
6,855,731 12,263,435
b Deposits 219,505 98,655
TEAT RIAE Prepayments 378,728 595,114

7,453,964 12,957,204

HEMEWE S EE SR E e R E AL ALY EPRRLBY Other receivables represent the receivable of grant from The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust for supporting
EERERGE TESEE 2 RNEEHED -BEREE the palliative care service for the underprivileged and for the construction of building in the Jockey Club Home for
EEexEZEevENENeREREAeEHEEEES Hospice. The receivable of grant from The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust was calculated and estimated in
BEEZAEL Z2ENDBRETELRGE HE T _ZF accordance with the verbal agreement between the Society and The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust.
=A=1+—H ' FEWEILIEDBIEA 6,257,567 i & A EF Included in the balance of accounts receivables an amount HK$6,257,567 have not claimed to The Hong Kong
EEEeEEETESLRE- Jockey Club Charities Trust as at 31 March 2020.
HENARAR KR EFTRIE 6. Other Payables and Accruals
—E-F —FT—h
2020 2019
BT BT -
HK$ HK$ 2
Bk
gaN
H th B A BR B R B RT 5RIR Other payables and accruals 8,590,518 '§ ig
g &
EZE WA 7. Deferred Income g
—EC-Z —F—h
2020 2019
BT BT
HK$ HK$
REA—H At 1 April 8,777,872 10,417,492
ARFZ RN Additions for the year 741,802 2,419,353
o R A FEERN S Less: Recognised as income for the year (3,268,660) (4,058,973)

R=A=+—H At 31 March 6,251,014 8,777,872
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EEES

8. Designated Funds

Vera Ruttonjee FAFEEE

The TUYF Desai #F&ZMEAM

Charitable ~ DRC&EYL Charitable R H 0 %E
Trusti8 & BR FBLIER PASS Fund & EIEX Hi @3 e

Fund from

Better Days

Fund from Initiative

Fund from Vera Ruttonjee (Palliative

the TUYF Desai Care Day

Charitable Fund from Fund from Fund from Charitable  Service Centre Fund from

Trust DRC & EYL FBL PASS Fund Pilot) others Total

(P 5Fa) (P 35 b) (Pt 5Ec) () (P 5xe) (P 1)

(Note a) (Note b) (Note c) (Note d) (Note e) (Note )
BT BT BT BT oy BT BT BT
HKS HK$ HKS HKS$ HKS HK$ HKS HK$
RZZE—-N\§WMA—A At 1 April 2018 841,423 386,161 - - - - 156,560 1,384,144
FRMEBR Donations received during the year 250,825 27,004 2,027,830 401,715 - - 39,714 2,747,178
BAZERGE Credited to profit or loss (986,802) (192,709) (660,206) (104,571) - = (93,000) (2,037,288)
RZE-NAF=ZA=1+—8H At31March 2019 105,446 220,546 1,367,624 297,144 - - 103,274 2,094,034
FRFTUBR Donations received during the year 263,670 - 1,706,690 422,285 1,196,100 497,400 55,084 4,141,229
BYERREERA Transferred to deferred income - - - - - - (158,358) (158,358)
FRRERHL Donations refunded during the year - (34,146) - - - - - (34,146)
BA-RBIREA Credited to general donation income received for prior years (279,820) (154,330) - - - - - (434,150)
(279,820) (188,476) - - - - (158,358) (626,654)
#EA2HNEE Credited to profit or loss (53,296) (32,070) (1,952,944) (304,284) (201,000) - - (2,543,594)
RZE-TE=-fA=+—H At 31 March 2020 36,000 - 1,121,370 415,145 995,100 497,400 = 3,065,015

AEeWR TIBRERERE HLBRBAIREME - 5
RZEBR 2 WX ARBERZIBRZ RBAM AR 2 m WK e
RP-R_E_TFE=—A=+—RAR-_ZT-NAF=ZA=+—
A EEESZHRBECEEEAGZRENRITEHRR -

The TUYF Charitable Trust#) 8 5% 18 & B E R It 21 5 RIZ[ER X IR
BIFRREIRNEINEERBEEIFTENAS -

M EHEEREESORCAEY)MIBRIEE AERMHERRE
[BEREOFERE RERE -
@%jic%%@E’\Jﬁ‘%%K%Eiﬁﬁfﬁ%ﬁfﬁé‘ﬁ/\ﬁﬂ%ﬁ(@%ﬁ%
Tr%: °

HERBSHETIEABPASS)NBRIE T AERRBBEREl BR
K& @GBS ¥ At &l -

Vera Ruttonjee Desai Charitable Trust i) 8 3% 38 & F3 {E £ i} [ Palliative
Care Assistant (PCA) Outreach Programme ] &+ 2 #9 5 5 -

BOCHK Cemetery Charity Programme £ 18 58 15 &8 Fl {E 28 #¥ [ 4 H 555
Bl (FEREREREFRLEEFTEDINAX -

The Society receives donations for designated purposes. These donations are refundable. Income and expenses in
respect of these funds are shown through the funds and through the statement of comprehensive income. The
balance of the designated funds is included in cash and bank balances of the Society as at 31 March 2020 and 31

March 2019.

Note:

a)

Fund from the TUYF Charitable Trust is a donation received specifically for expenditure incurred for the programme
“End-of-Life Care Education Programme” and “Overseas Palliative Care Training”.
Fund from Drs. Richard Charles & Esther Yewpick Lee Charitable Foundation (DRC & EYL) is a donation received
specifically for the expenditure incurred for the programme “Community-based Advance Care Planning (ACP) Programme”.
Fund from Innovation and Technology Fund for Better Living (FBL) is a donation received specifically for the
expenditure incurred for the programme “Pioneer Integrated Palliative and Hospice Care System (iPAHCs)”.
Professional Services Advancement Support Scheme (PASS) is a donation received specifically for expenditure incurred
for the programme “Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Bay Area End-of-life Care Professional Training Programme”
Fund from Vera Ruttonjee Desai Charitable Fund is a donation received specifically for the expenditure incurred for the
Programme “Palliative Care Assistant (PCA) Outreach Programme”.
BOCHK Centenary Charity Programme (Allocation via CCHK) Projects is a donation received specifically for
expenditure incurred for the “Better Days Initiative (Palliative Care Day Service Centre Pilot)”.
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11.

12.

BEEHRA NS

9. Gross Income from Fund Raising Events

=F=% TN

2020 2019

T BT

HK$ HK$

B =T Hike for Hospice 1,165,253 2,317,290
MeEmACERSLS Light up a Life Concert 717,724 878,810
LR EFRAILE P E-Sport 217,951 213,000
Music for Life Music for Life — 30,000
ERECEZEIRENEY Fundraising events for Jockey Club Home for Hospice 14,052 19,575
H i E & Other activities 163,241 2,571
2,278,221 3,461,246

HEEZEZHME

WERZATRBARARZERERRE -HERSME

REMURRTEGEEESTARUDEARFAX M
—EN )

CEMERE
O AR B R R AT R A B A E AR
WETEERGES YR - Vilos S0t

10. Executive Committee Members’ Remuneration

None of the executive committee members, who are also considered as key management of the Society, received or
will receive any fees or other emoluments in respect of their services to the Society during the year (2019: Nil).

11. Operating Lease Commitments

At the end of the reporting period, the Society had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented premises which fall due as follows:

—E-ZF —F—h

2020 2019

BT BT

HK$ HK$

Within one year 118,944 118,944
For 2™ to 5" years 118,944 237,888

237,888 356,832

BARESE

EAEHEARTERZEREENT

12. Capital Commitment

At the end of the reporting period, the Society had the following capital commitment:

—F=% —F—N
2020 2019
BT AT
HK$ HK$

EELNERRERE

Contracted but not provided for 391,350
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Acknowledgement

HREEMAR  AMARERFBUBRELIFENET ROUORHBUEREEE —FHEESNEEMIFF -

(AR FRIEFHE5)
BRAESBIKE

Donors (Associations or Organizations)

BABRE

Individual Donors

A.R. Medicom Inc. (Asia) Limited The Board of Management of the Chinese Permanent Cemeteries Mrs Johanna Arculli Mr Lau Tung Hoi

AccGirl Limited The Cathedral CLARES Ms Au Yeung Kar Wai Lau KaNgan

AP Technology Limited The Catholic Diocese of Hong Kong Mr Peter Wilhelm Hubert Brien MrLaw Ch‘un Yiu

Arts Optical Company Limited The Hong Kong Golf Culb m;\g:];n%r:ﬂ vin EA?LZZGIEV\::S Jg;‘g

Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust Ms Chan Lai Ying Mr Lee Wai Mo
Associated Medical Supplies Co. Ltd The Kadoorie Charitable Foundation Dr Hubert Chan Chung Yee Miss Vicky Lee Wai Shuen
Charitable Choice Limited The Kowloon Dairy Ltd Ms Chan Sui Yin Ms Sandra Leung Wai Ling
Chen Hsong Holdings Limited The Life Underwriters Association of Hong Kong Mr Edward Chan King Yuen Ms Leung Suk Chong
Chen Yang Foo Oi Foundation The Mari Cha Group Chan Ming Yee Mr Victor Leung
Chinachem Agencies Limited The Ohel Leah Synagogue Charity MrChanYiuWah Ms Violet Leung Yuet Yuen
Chow Mun Sum Tong Foundation Limited The Swire Group Charitable Trust mscl\)ﬂhil;rgir;ic‘(hﬁ Wailing Mfll__;\l(ﬂugnlsnsui
Correctional Services Department Sports Association The TUYF Charitable Trust Mr Edgar Cheng Wai Kin Mr Andrew Lo Lap Kwong
Crown Worldwide Holdings Ltd The Wharf (Holdings) Limited Mr Raymond Cheng Shu Shing Mr Lo Hon Chiu

Emperor Foundation Limited Topmart Investments Limited Ms Cheung Chiu Yi Ms Lo Sum Yu

Gold Ride (Hong Kong) Limited Trusty Realty Limited Mr Cheung Chin To Ms Catalina Lo Wing Ling
Goldman Sachs (Asia) L.L.C. Vera Ruttonjee Desat Charitable Fund Mr David Chiu Chun Leong Mr Michael John Lonergan

Goldman Sachs Asia Matching Gift Program

Zurich Insurance Company Limited

Dr & Mrs Anthony Chiu Sung Lit

Mrs Vivienne Louise Lonergan

Colcman Sachs Givos pET Crung S Ping vttt
Gordon C & Co., LTD RARE E R i Miss Chung So Yee Miss Luk Kit Fong
Hong Kong Property Services (Agency) Ltd B EEERBEERSEES Ms Renee Chung Si Weng Ms Ma Man San
Imagine 3 Limited BREMESES Ho Yu Yee Miss Maggie Ma Po Ming
J L Gill (HK) Limited Miss Ho Kin Wing Dr Mak Lai Wo
Jing Mei Industrial Limited Ms Sabrina Ho Mr John Mcnie
Kennington Ltd Mr Simpne Hsu Chian Min Mr Edward Naylor
Lachmi's Int'l Ltd Mr David Huang Ruoan Mg Ng Yuk Chun
. Ms Hung Sau Ha Miss Ng On Ni

Lee Man Football Limited Mr Ip Kwing Cheung Mr Stephen Ng Chi Kwan
LUA Foundation Limited Ms Karmen Kam Mr Ng Mun Slng
May Cheong Group Ms Judy Ko Mr Vincent Ng Wing Shun
MediPaper Medical Communications Ltd Mrs Cynthia Kracht Ms Ong Shuet Wing
Midland Charitable Foundation Limited Mr Kwok Chi Yat Ms Pang Wing Sze
Myer Jewelry Mir. Ltd. Mr Keith quk ChiFung Mr Mgrk Rogers
Ng Teng Fong Charitable Foundation Limited Mr Kwok Ch', Furjg Mr M!chael J T Rowse

- ) Ms Kwong Tin Ki Ms Siu Yuen Lan
Professional Services Advancement Support Scheme Ms Lai Yuk Ling Alan & Penny Smith
Oncology Care Society Mr Lai Shing Mr Su Pui Kwan
Regal Hotels International Ms Ida Lam Sze Ting Miss Suen Ming Lam
Salable Development Ltd Mr Edward Lam Faan Man Ms Tam Pui Wai
Search Investment Group Limited Mr Lam Wai Hon Ms Seesea Tam Yick See

Mr Vincent Lam Kwan Ching Mr Tam Yue Man

Sun Hung Kai Properties Charitable Fund Limited



We would like to extend our grateful thanks to all donors and supporters who have supported SPHC in past years, though the list of names is not exhaustive due to space limitation. Your
continuing trust and commitment is deeply appreciated. Thank you from all of us.

(In alphabetical order)

BABRE BEEN BEELZE
Individual Donors Our Collaborators Monthly Donors
Ms Tam Yuen Ling C.L.AAR.E.S. of St. John's Cathedral Miss Au Yeung Kit Man Ms Feon Lau Ho Ping Ms Janet Tsim Ching Ching
Ms Tan Hwee Lynn C2 Master of Ceremonies Volunteer Group Miss Clare-Marie Beeson Mrs Lau Kam Wai Mr Hugh Tze Hoi Hang
Ms Tang Wai Foon : Crown Relocations Mr Chan Ping Ms Law Sze Wan Mr Wan Sai Cheong
m;sﬁ:n%ygsggnzhf;ﬁ;a' Man Crown Wine Cellars Ms Chan Wai Lan Ms Lee Wing Yin Ms Shirley Wan Yuen Shan
Dr Catherine Tong Wai Shuen Federation of Hong Kong Industries Ms Jessi Chan Yan Yee Ms Lee Yuk Yuen Mr Philip Wong
Mr Julian Trott Hamilton Advisors Limited Mr Chan Chi Cheong Miss Lee Sui Fun Mr Wong Ka Ki
Mr Tsang Fu Ming Hong Kong Adventure Corps Ms Chan Mei Yee Miss Lee Yuk Yuen Ms Kitty Wong Ka Yee
Mr Stanley Tse Lap Yee Hong Kong Amateur Radio Transmitting Society Mr Chan Chee Hang Ms Leung Yee Wan Ms Wong Kit Man
Elizabeth and Enzio Von Pfeil Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited Ms Christine Chan Mui Fong Ms Leung Foon Hay Mr Henry Wong Kwong Hung
MrWong YuenFai ' Hong Kong Innovative Technology Development Association ~ Ms Jessie Chan Ms Fiona Leung Mei Yiu Ms Wong Li Li
m;gﬁiﬂ;ﬂn\/\\% Cr’];gsvl:/i'r'l'ga:a' Hong Kong Palliative Nursing Association Ms Chan Yawen Mr Leung Siu Nam Ms Wong Sin Ting
Ms Alice Wong May Kuen Hong Kong Society of Palliative Medicine Mr Chan Shun On Mrs Kathy Leung Lam Yin Fong Ms Wong Wai Ha
Ms Wong Yuen Kwan Hong Kong Welsh Male Voice Choir Ms Jessi Chan Yan Yee Mr Alex Li Kiu Ming Ms Wong Wai Man
Ms Cathy Wong Lai Chun Hong Kong Young Industrialists Council Ms Wynnie Chen Miss Wendy Li Fung Yee Ms Flavia Wong Kin Lai
MrWong Lap Shun Institution of Mechanical Engineers (IMechE) HK Branch Ms Cheng Po Yee Dr Howard Hoover Liu Shun Ho Mr Wong Kwok Man
Mr Raymond Wong Siu Keung Mr Kim Robinson Ms Cheng Tat Mee Ms Luk Kit Yee Ms Wong Pik Fun
MrWong Kwok Kee Rare & Fine Wines Limited Mr Cheng Lai Fung Ms Luk Ka Po Ms Woo Hoi Yin
mr S;elzvevv\\//ong CniWah Regal Kowloon Hotel Hong Kong Mr Cheung Kwai Chung Ms Man Lai Hoi Ms Yeung Kwok Chun
Vi Ancren Youn . Rotary Club of Smart Hong Kong Mr Cheung Shing Ip Ms Ida Mok Ah Chee Mr Yip Ho Lam
Ms Yip Kam Mui St. John's Cathedral Ms Cheung Wing Sze Miss Mok Kwai Suen Ms Yu Siu Fong
Mr Yip Ping Kwai St. John's Cathedral Bookstore Ms Josephine Chin Wai Man Ms Celia Ng Suk Chee Ms Yu Siu Po
Miss Young Hang Ling Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Ltd Mr Cho Kwok Yin Ms Ng Yuet Ming Miss Winnie Yuen Wing Sze
Ms Yue Mui Fun TeamRite International Limited Mr Thomas Choi Lap Man Ms Ng Sui Ying
Ms Grace Pang Yan Yan in Memory of MrPang Cheuk Wah The Agriculture, Fisheries and Conservation Department Mr Chow Chung Wei Dr Karen Pak Kam Tze
I\D/IrrIEIJ':::EiIr? Ikzaoskhiinl\l/llmizzrfyl\z;'\lﬂzﬁgingﬁwlgp &Dr SiuWing Tai The Hong Kong Polytechnic University, SPEED Mr Chow Kin Man Miss Pang Yuet Ho
Ms Eugenia Tsui Yuen Chun in Memory of Mr Tsui King Chi The late Mr Richard Kwang and Strategic Marketing Group Ms Choy Lap Wai Ms See Ching Ching
Mr Hugh Tse Hoi Hang in Memory of Ms Chan Yiu Nam Yale Club of Hong Kong Mr Chu Hou Pan Ms Isabel Shen Sau Wa
Mrs Purviz Rusy Shroffin Memory of Mr Rusy M. Shroff and all beloved ones FE R R Mr Chu Chi Kwong Ms Gloria Shum Mei Ching

In Memory of Dr Kelly Au Ka Lai
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Ms Chung Hoi Fa

Ms Annie Chung Yim Hung
Mr Fung Kwan Leung

Mr Ho Cheuk Hei

Ms Jackie Hung Shui Yin
Mr Simon Hung Hing Chiu
Mr Gordon Jones

Mr Ko Kam Ming

Mr Kwan Wai Lun

Ms Kwok King Kam

Ms Elaine Kwong Wai Yung
Miss Lai Yuk Ling

Mr Andrew Lam Sai Yun
Ms Jacquelines Lam Sheung Fung

Mr Paul Sit Kwok Leung
Ms Kathy Sit Suk Chong
Mr Siu Wai Yip

Mr So Wai Chiu

Ms Pauline Tam Bo Yee
Ms Tam Shuk Ming

Mr Henry Tang Wai Hung
Ms Samantha Tang

Miss Tang Hau Ting

Ms Tsang Yuk Lan

Mr Tsang Cheung Man
Miss Jennifer Tsang Lai Fong
Miss Tse Wai Ching

Ms Tse Wai Man
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Society for the Promotion of Hospice Care Please Support SPHC No.18, A Kung Kok Shan Road, Shatin, Hong Kong

)
[es)

== ERVHEAALKISRERSEEREZR
g2 AEREBERR A FAsESa :

=SB Jockey Club Home for Hospice,

S, +852 2331 7000 = +852 2336 2776
@ www.hospicecare.org.hk ™ frp@hospicecare.org.hk

o

BAEREBTIRE REBEERMEVSE YFLOXEAZEZES  UBASHHBRZ EXKE - FOBAABERBREERE -

Please complete the form and v* as appropriate, and return to us by post or

I8 % # Donation Form

o i

vy fax for the issuance of official receipt. Your personal data provided herein will be kept strictly confidential.

75 2 Iwould like to 87 % %8 Donation Amount
BRI 0 RERER _ BMHKD [ $3,000 [1$1,000 [J$600 [ H b Other $
Donate on a monthly basis Make a one-off donation
B A% Donation Purpose(s) O == €5 A General Donation [ 238 252 5 Jk SPHC Charity Beds [ # % K 123l Education and Training
O — T EZ=%= R EEZB)E 2] 1000 Hospice Families Subsidy Program [ X 15 & # Bl & & Grief and Bereavement Counselling [ H fth Other(s)
BRAEHR Donor’s Information
# % Name (7 3) 45 4 Mir//NE Miss/ 22 &= Ms/ H i, Others:
(English)
H#3F Address % & Phone
EH Email B AMSE () Donor No. (If any)

AAFLEUW T ZE S H)3EE | agree to receive news and updates from SPHC O # Yg SE 3@ & receive email communications [ # U & #2 € 1, receive printed newsletter

BB — B sk A £ Al 2 U /E R 7 B % Donations of HKD100 or above are tax-deductible with an official receipt O & A Z4B UL | do not require donation receipt

iI8& F 3% Donation Method

O 49 _t£3457k Online Donation
(55RI7E Please go to http://www.hospicecare.org.hk)

O &4 X = CrossedCheque X Z5E# Cheque No. (¥45E[ =2 & | Payable to “The Society for the Promotion of Hospice Care”)
O HFAXRERITSH Direct Transfer (REELEITF OHSBC002-3-365638 - 5 Ak HBITABMEEFS)

(SPHC’s Bank Account: HSBC 002-3-365638. Please send the bank-in slip to SPHC by fax or by post)

[0 {f+ CreditCard
GERNE AT R ERIBZ Applicable to both monthly and one-off donation)
0 Visa [J MasterCard [J American Express
£ A4 Cardholder’'s Name
{Z A 974 Card No.
B WMEIZE Expiry Date (mm/yy) /

* AABREEESHAAZEARFOER FEERIEEHK—RAMEBR -84
BAERERAAZGRARANMBRRERN REGNEEEN BEER1TEH -

* | hereby authorize the Society for the Promotion of Hospice Care to debit the amount
specified above from my credit card account on a monthly or one-off basis. The
authorization for monthly debit will continue after the expiry date of the credit card and with

* R AZZE Cardholder’ s Signature the issuance of a new card until further notice.




ZESHNRAREBARFARHKEBEREEZNERT &
HXEEHW% REXEHE UBEBREHRFILREREELEH
BotER—EABYL TXBMEPNEERE KMERAR
ARRLEROXFHMNMBEY  TENRALTEEZEEERE -
RBHELEZERTENA

o &5

j’ﬁ TFA

. www.hospicecare.org.hk

%E: hEBRIEEY

EAR JE & #R 77 HSBC 002-3-365638 Ik
BEERE: ERZEBE I EFE]AXEAZ —-

REEEGE: BIFEEASRBUEXEBEIRRHBESE
T BHENBRFTE BRRATUAGIZEE]S
REFZAN BHBONRRETEES -

MBET

EASRUETHIEZ EIELRR] BEAREHE
volunteers@hospicecare.org.hk
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<53 1M
Support Us

The Society for the Promotion of Hospice Care (SPHC) is dedicated to providing quality and
comprehensive hospice and palliative service and bereavement support to terminal patients and
their families, offering training course to caregivers and promoting life and death education to
members of the public. As a freestanding charitable organization, your support and donation is vital
to our mission and those we are ready to serve.

Donation

Online: www.hospicecare.org.hk

Cheque: Payable to “The Society for the Promotion of Hospice Care”

Direct Transfer: HSBC 002-3-365638

Legacy Donation: You may choose the Society as one of the beneficiaries in your will.

Policy Donation Program: Jointly supported by The Life Underwriters Association of Hong Kong and LUA
Foundation, policyholders may select SPHC as one of the policy beneficiaries.

Become a Volunteer

Download the application form from our official website, and e-mail to volunteers@hospicecare.org.hk.

BXASE M Staytuned withus

{RIRALE BRI R BB I EE SN

Keep track of updates at our social media network

@ www.hospicecare.org.hk u youtube.com/hospicecarehk

m facebook.com/hospicecarehk instagram.com/hospicecarehk

nAEE A - BElEE2331 70008k EE ZE sphc@hospicecare.org.hk
For enquiries please contact us at 2331 7000 or email to sphc@hospicecare.org.hk
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Society for the Promotion of Hospice C

wewiscog FSC™ €C127090

BEREEEZX

Jockey Club Home for Hospice

EBHRDBEAAILK I8
No. 18, A Kung Kok Shan Road,
Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong

%55 Phone: +852 2331 7000
{55 Fax: +852 2336 2776

@ 7~

T Email: sphc@hospicecare.org.hk

@ www.hospicecare.org.hk

E] www.facebook.com/hospicecarehk

ZE® The Society for the Promotion of Hospice Care

ElETHRERRZRBEPL
Jessie & Thomas Tam Centre

EENERDERHEENIS316-318 =
Room 316-318, Lai Lan House, Lai Kok Estate,
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong

QL %3} Phone: +852 2725 7693
(=) {SH Fax: +852 2304 2277
5 E# Email: jttc@hospicecare.org.hk

@ www.instagram.com/hospicecarehk

¥ www.twitter.com/hospicecarehk





